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To 
The Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) The National Stock Exchange (NSE) of India 
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Dear Sir / Madam, 

Sub.: OQutcome of the Board Meeting held on 17™ May, 2025 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 30 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulation, 2015, we would like to inform you that at the meeting of Board of 
Director of M/s Madhucon Projects Ltd., held on Saturday, 17*" May, 2025, the Board has inter- 
alia approved Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results of the company for 

the quarter and year ended 31 March, 2025 along with Auditors’ Report in terms of Regulation 

33 (3) (a) and (b) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 and the Board declares that the said 
Auditor's Reports are issued with modified opinion by the Statutory Auditors M/s P. Murali & 
Co., Chartered Accountants. Hyderabad. 

Meeting of the Board of Directors commenced at 11:00 A.M and concluded at 16:35 P.M. 

Kindly take them on record. 

Thanking you, 
For Madhucon Projects Limited 

(D. Malla Reddy) 
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

Attached as above 

Corp. Office : "Madhucon House", 1129/A, Road No. 36, Jubilee Hills, Hyderabad - 500 033, Telangana, India 
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Independent Auditor's Review Report on the Quarterly Audited Standalone 
Financial Results of the Company pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI 

(Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended 

Review report to 

The Board of Directors 
M/S. MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

We have audited the accompanying IND AS statement of standalone financial 
results of Madhucon projects limited (“The Company™) for the quarter ended 31st 

March, 2025 and for the period from 01% April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 (“The 

Statement”) attached herewith, being submilted by “The Company” pursuant to the 
requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (the "Listing Regulations"). 

I.  Qualified Opinion on Standalone Financial Results 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given lo us, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the “Basis for 
Qualified Opinion” section of our report, “Lhe statement”: 

a. is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the 

Listing Regulations in this regard; and 

b.give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and 

measurement principles laid down in the applicable Indian Accounting 
Standards and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

Net Loss and Total Comprehensive |oss and other financial information for 

the quarter ended 31st March, 2025 as well as the year-to-date results for the 

period from 0157 April, 2024 Lo 31% March, 2025 

1. Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 

(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

section of our report. We are independent of “the Company” in accordance 

with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 

of the financial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
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and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

. We refer to the carrying value of Liguity I[nvestments of Rs. 1,03,662.52 
lakhs held in subsidiaries/other companies and other investmenls of Rs. 

5624.18 lakhs held in subsidiaries/other companies, some of these have 
been incurring losses and in case of some of the subsidiaries, net worth 
was fully or substantially eroded / Going Concern is affected. We are 
unable to comment upon the carrying value of investments and other 
investments whether any provision for impairment in the value of Equity 
Investments and other investments is required; the effect of same upon the 

profitability could not be ascertained in the absence of fair valuation. 

a. In the case of Madhucon Infra Limited, a subsidiary, the management 
basing on the valuation Reports on “Investment in Madhucon Infra 
Limited” concluded that the value of this Investment is Nil and has written 
off an amount of Rs. 30,550.68 l.akhs in FY 2023-24 being 25% of the 
Investment held and during FY 2024-25 the company has further wrillen 
off Rs.30,550.68 lakhs being 25% of Investment held. As ol 31st March, 2025 

the company has written off only 50% of the total investment held instead 
of writing off complete value of investment. For the balance 50% of the 

Investment no provision for impairment is made in the books of account as 
at 31st March, 2025. 

[ the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the 
basis of such partial write off. 

b. In the case of Madurai Tulicorin Expressways Limited, a step down 

subsidiary, the management basing on the valuation Reports on 

“Investment in Madurai Tuticorin kixpressways Limited” concluded that 

the value of this Investment is Nil and has written off an amount of Rs. 

2,952.05 Lakhs during the FY 2024-25 being, 33.33% of the Investment held 

instead of writing off complete value of investment. For the balance 66.66% 

of the Investment no provision for impairment is made in the books of 

account as at 31st March, 2025. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the 

basis of such partial write off. 
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“The Company” has defaulied in repayment of dues to Canara Bank and 
Punjab National Bank (PNB) total amounting to Rs.6,785.99 lakhs as per books 

of account and the same were classified as NPA by the lenders. Interest on 
these loans is not being provided for. With respect lo these outstanding dues, 
O1S agreements have been entered with the respective banks. However, 
the OTS benefits pertaining to these banks have not been recognized, despite 

full settlement payments having been made, due Lo non-receipt of No Objection 
Certificates (NOCs) from the respective banks. 

During the year, the Company recognized a one-time settlement (OTS) benefit 

lotaling Rs. 22,176.41 lakhs in the case of ICICI Bank (Rs. 20,140.15 lakhs) and 

NG Vysya Bank (Rs. 2,036.26 lakhs) 

“The Company” has Unsecured loan Outstanding payable to Barasat 
Krishnagar Expressways Limiled (Subsidiary of Madhucon infra Limited 
(referred as “MIL")) of Rs. 9,456.74 lakhs. Against which, the company has set 

off the Loan amount receivable from Madhucon Infra Limited (Subsidiary of 
“the Company”) amounting to Rs. 7,459.50 lakhs and Rs. 1,700.00 lakhs from 
Madhucon Toll Highways Limited (Subsidiary of MIL) totalling to Rs. 9,159.50 
lakhs during the quarter ended 31st March, 2025, and shown the Net amount 
Payable to Barasat Krishnagar Expressways Limited as Rs. 297.24 lakhs. 

“I'he Company “ has wrilten back Irade Payables amounting 10 Rs. 247.05 
lakhs and Rs. 382.53 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and Year 

ended 31st March, 2025. 

“The Company” has written back Other Payables (including Interest payable) 

amounting to Rs. 12.99 lakhs and Rs. 1,482.71 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st 
March, 2025 and Year ended 31 March, 2025 respectively. 

“The Company” has written off advances to Other Parties amounting to Rs. 

346.40 lakhs and Rs. 1705.10 lakhs for the quarter ended 31 March, 2025 and 

Year ended 31 March, 2025 respectively. 

During the quarter ended 315 March 2025 "the Company” has recognized 

interest expense amounting lo Rs.3285 lakhs on account of 

delayed/outstanding trade pavables to MSME. However, TDS has not 

been deducted on the said interest amount.” 

During the quarter, the management carried out a physical verification of 

certain PPE and to scrap assets comprising computers, furniture, and 

temporary erections with a gross block of Rs. 5,042.21 lakhs, which were 

disposed of for a total consideration of Rs.0.24 lakhs. tHowever, physical 

verification of other significant assets, including Plant & Machinery and 
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Tippers & Trucks, has not been conducted during the year and as such we are 
nol in a position to ascertain Lhe realisable value of the same. 

9. “The company” is yet to transfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to 
Rs. 373 lakhs relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from unpaid 
dividend account to Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). 

10. Undispulted Statulory dues in case of {ollowing are outstanding: 

5.No Name of the Status Nature of Due Period Rs. 

| - ! in Lakhs 

1 Thelncome TaxAct,  Dividend Distribution la: 2011-12t0 201617 139.93 | 
1961 & Interest on it 

2 ‘The Employees Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 63.95 

Provident funds and 

Aliscellaneous 

provision act 1952 

11. Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 1= April 2024 to 31st 

March, 2025. 

12. In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior 
approval from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial 
remuneration of Rs. 128.97 Lakhs paid by the company during the vear is 
in excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of 
Companies Act, 2013, 

13. “The Company” has not produced Title Deeds in respect of certain 

immovable properties (lands) held. 

14. In case of “Ranchi Expressways Lid (REL)”, a subsidiary of MIL, CBI has filed 

FIR against REL, its Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 under Prevention of 

Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement 

Directorate has raided the premises of “The Company” on 11-06-2021 and the 

Enforcement Directorate has been filed a charge sheet during December 

2023 and the next date of hearing, is 17-06-2025. 

15. As per the press release dated 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of 

Enforcement has provisionally allached 105 immovable properties and 28 other 

assets worth Rs96.21 Crore and Rs80.65 Crore respectively belonging to 

Madhucon Group of companies, its directors and promoters which included 
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the properties of Madhucon Projects Limiled and group companies in a case 
against M/s Ranchi Expressway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002 

In case of Ranchi Expressways Lid (REL) a subsidiary of MIL, “The lion‘ble 

National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 22.12.2023 

admitted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), for a petition 
filed by State Bank of India. Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) has made an appeal 
to “The Hon'ble NCLAT” and “The Iion’ble NCLAT” has deferred the 
impugned order given by NCL'T and posted the {inal hearing to 06.06.2025. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs and has 
‘Itade Receivables of Rs. 8,093.58 lakhs in the above subsidiary of MIL for 

which no provision has been made. 

In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur lLixpressways Limited a subsidiary of MIL, 
“The Hon'ble National Company law ‘Iribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 
22082023 admitted the Corporale Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), 

against which “The Hon'ble NCLAT has passed an order and directed the COC 
to defer its proceedings till next hearing to 26.06.2025. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.10 lakhs and 
advances made of Rs. 42.82 lakhs in the above subsidiary of MIL for which no 
provision has been made. 

In case of Barasal - Krishnagar Lxpressways Limited a subsidiary of MIL, “The 
Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 
28.11.2023 admitted the Corporale Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), for a 

petition filed by State Bank of India. Barasal - Krishnagar Expressways Limited 

(BKLL) has made an appeal to “Ihe llon'ble NCLAT” and “The Hon'ble 

NCLAT” has deferred Lhe impugned order given by NCLT and posted the next 

hearing t0 24.06.2025. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs in the 

above subsidiary of MIL for which no provision has been made. 

In the absence of confirmation of some of the Trade payables, Irade 

Receivables and various advances/loans, we are unable to comment on the 

extent to which such balances are payable/recoverable. Some of the payables to 

parties are shown by netting off with Lhe other receivables. 

. Balance confirmation of current accounts, which have become Dormant, are not 

oblained in case of Bank Branches al various project siles. 
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IL.  Matters Relating to Going Concern 

“The Company’s” current Liabililies exceeded currenl assels amounting to Rs. 

37,034.83 Lakhs and “The Company” has defaulted in payment of dues to 

banks. 

All the above evenls indicale a material uncertainty existing that may cast a 

significant doubt on “The Company’s” abilily lo continue as a going concern. 

However, the management believes the use of going concern assumption on the 

preparation of the financial statements of “the company” is still appropriate in 

view of settlement of dues to banks under OIS and its continuing discussions 

with its other lenders Lo obtain approval for an appropriate debt resolution plan 

and also, that “the company” will continue (o be in operation in the foreseeable 

future. 

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results 

These quarterly financial results as well as the year-to-date standalone financial 
results have been prepared on the basis of the financial statements. The 
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of these 
financial resulls that give a true and [air view of the net loss and other 
comprehensive loss and other fin n in accordance with the 
recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting 

Standard 34, ‘Interim Financial Reporting’ prescribed under Section 133 of the 

Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles 

generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing 

Regulations. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 

accounting, records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of “the Company” and for prevenling and detecting frauds and 

other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that 

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 

accounting records, relevant lo the preparation and presentalion of the 

standalone financial results that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due Lo [raud or error. 

ial inform: 



P. MURALI & Co., Tel. © (91-40) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 
6-3-655/2/3, SOMAJIGUDA, Fax : (91-40) 2339 2474 

= Email : pmurali.co@gmail.com INDIA  HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA info@pmurali com 
Website . www.pmurali.com 

In preparing the standalone financial results, the Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to 
liquidate “the Company” or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. 
The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 

financial reporting process. 

V. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results: 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether (he standalone 

[inancial results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and lo issue an audilor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected Lo influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial resulls. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

#Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 

financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

<Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 

section 143(3)(i) of the Acl, we are also responsible for expressing our 

opinion on whether “the Company” has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operaling effectiveness of such controls. 

We have given a Qualified Opinion on the Internal financial Controls of 

“the company”. 
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<Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 

Board of Directors. 

< Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going 

concern basis of accounting and, based on the audil evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncerlainly exists related to events or conditions that 

may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going 

concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 

to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 

(inancial results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 

opinion. Our conclusions arc based on the audil evidence oblained up to 

the date of our auditor’s report. Llowever, fulure events or condilions may 

cause “the Company” to cease Lo conlinue as a going concern. 

< Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone 

financial results, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 

results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 

achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 

our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 
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The statement includes the results for the quarter ended 31% March, 2025 being 

the balancing figures between the audited figures for the full financial year and 

the unaudited published year to date figures up to 31% December, 2024 which 

were subjected to the limited review by us. 

For P. Murali & Co. 
Chartered Accouptsft 
FRN: 0072575 

A. Krishna Ra\) 
Partner 
M.No. 020085 

5 

UDIN: 25020085BMILEH1142 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date: 17.05.2025
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STATEMENT OF STANDALONE AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(=in Lakhs) 
Standalone 

sl Particul Quarter ended Year ended 

No b 31.03.2025 | 31122024 | 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2025 | 31.03.2024 
Audited Unaudited Audited Auvdited Auvdited 

! Revenue from Operations 11,766.30 9.010.59 [ 27,156.11 | 58,032.49 95,124.33 

" | Otherincome 109469 | 3522.67 | 2328008 | 27.559.97 [  25.442.41 

| Total Income (1+11) 12,860.98 | 12,533.27 | 50436.20 | 85592.45 | 1,20,566.74 
IV | Expenses: 

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 8,676.31 10,437.72 | 19,318.03 | 47,590.66 81,834.01 

(b) Employee benefits expense 367.79 365.43 449.74 1,459.99 1.874.02 

(c) Financial Costs - 75.00 115673 221.07 724.02 

(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 120.08 141.58 156.22 570.55 611.26 
(e) Other expenses 3,820.22 192214 | 31,264.67 | 37.290.30 37,553.88 

Total Expenses 12,984.39 | 12,941.87 | 51,304.39 | 87,132.57 1,22,597.19 

& Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional ltems and tax (lll-IV) (123.41) (408.60) (868.19) (1,540.11) (2,030.45)| 

VI | Exceptional Items - - - - - 

VIl | Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (3-4) (123.41)|  (408.60)] (868.19) (1.540.11) (2,030.45) 
VIl | Tax Expense 

a) Current Tax - - - - 

b) Adjustments relating to earlier years - - - - - 

C) Deferred Tax 933.15 (113.00) (598.07) 564.30 (1,003.51) 

Total Tax (a+b) 933.15 (113.00) (598.07) 564.30 (1,003.51) 

X | profit/(Loss) from Continuing operations (VII-VIll) (1,056.56)|  (295.60) (270.12)| (2.104.41)|  (1,026.94) 

X | Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations - - - - - 

XI | Tax Expense of discontinued operations - - - - 

Xil| Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations after tax (X-XI) - - - - - 

Xl | Profit/Loss for the period (IX+XIl) (1,056.56) (295.60) (270.12)| (2,104.41) (1,026.94)| 

Attributable to: 

- Share Holders of the Parent Company - - = - - 

-Non Controlling Interest - = - - - 
Xiv [ Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 

A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - - 

cl’l‘z])?ri—meczsuremem gains/(losses) on defined benefit 787 - 47.35 7.87 4735 

Share of Other Comprehensive income transferred to = = 2 = - 
Non Confrolling interest 

(ii) Income tax relating to these items - - - - - 

B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - - - - 

(i) Incometax relating fo these items - - - - - 

Share of Profit /(Loss) fransferred to Non Controlling = 3 - B ~ 
Interest 

Total Other Comprehensive income,net of tax 7.87 - 47.35 7.87 47.35 

Attributable to: 

- Share Holders of the Parent Company - " n = - 

- Non Controlling Interest = - - - - 

XV | Total Comprehensive Income (XIlI+XIV) (1.,048.69) (295.60) (222.77) (2,096.53) (979.59) 

Attributable to: - - - - & 

- Share Holders of the Parent Company m - - B - 

- Non Controlling Interest - - - - - 

XVi | Paid - up Equity Share Capital (Face value of Rs.1/-) 737.95 737.95 737.95 737.95 737.95 

Xvil | Toal Reserves i.e Other equity - - - - - 

Xvil Earning per share (of Rs.1/- each) (not annualised) (for " " - . g 
discontinued and continuing operations) 

- Basic and Diluted (1.43) A /(O‘.AO) (0.37) (2.85) (1.39) 



Notes: 

1 

Place: Hyderabad = 

Date : May 17, 2025 DIN: 07178265 

The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting and approved by the Board of Directors of 

the Company at its meeting held on May 17th, 2025. The Statutory Auditors have submitted Audit Report on the Audited 
Financial Results for Quarter and Year ended March 31st, 2025. 
The Company's operations primarily consists of construction-project activities and there are no other reportable 
segments under Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments". 

The Standalone Audited Financial Results of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in terms of Regulation 33 of the 

SEBI ((Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

Figures of the quarter ended March 31st, 2025 and March 31st, 2024 are balancing figures between the Audited figures 

in respecgt of the Full Financial Year and Unaudited published figures up to the third quarter for the respective year 

Figures of previous period have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. 

By order of the Board 
for Madhucon Projects Limited 

A 

mad Shafi K. Vepkateswarlu 
Jt. Managing Director Diregtor cum CFO 

N: 09713108 



Madhucon Projects Limited 
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025 

(All the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares' , "Face value of Equity share" and Earning per share) 

(% in Lakhs) 

Note As at Asat 
Barchouiste No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

1 |assETS 
Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 2,050.80 2,866.86 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 2.2 74,167.98 1,00,286.70 
(ij) Trade Receivables 23 8,093.58 8,073.69 

(iii) Loans 24 5,504.47 10,112.67 
(iv) Others Financial Assets 25 16,441.50 17,322.13 

(¢) Deferred tax Asset (Net) 26 5,015.26 5,579.56 
(b) Other Non-Current Assets 2.7 13,349.95 13,656.85 

Total Non-Current As: 1,24,713.53 1,66,898.47 
2 [Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 28 3 55.00 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Trade Receivables 29 392.84 4,327.78 
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 2.10 52875 553.99 

(iif) Others Financial Assets 211 1,732.21 5,754.65 
(¢) Current Tax Asset (Net) 212 2,071.47 6,154.15 
(d) Other Current Assets 213 7,889.66 9,041.10 

Total Current Assets 12,614.93 25,886.77 
Total Assets 1,37,328.46 1,92,785.24 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 
(a) Equity Share capital 2.14 740.32 740.32 
(b) Other Equity 2.15 49,604.15 51,700.68 

Total Equity 50,344.47 52,441.01 
LIABILITIES 

1 |Non-Current Liabiliti 

(a) Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 

(ii) Trade Payables 2.16 22,108.58 © 800279 
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
andsmall enterprises; and 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
micro enterprises and small enterprises.] 

(iil) Other Financial Liabilities 217 88.87 50.97 
(b) _Provisions 2.18 40.74 78.52 
(¢) Other Non-Current Liabilities 2.19 15,096.04 13,903.68 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 37,334.23 22,125.96 

2 [Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 2.20 6,785.99 36,739.68 
(ii) Trade Payables 221 11,209.39 36,723.60 

(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
andsmall enterprises; and 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other than 
microenterprises and small enterprises.| 

(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 222 5,205.01 11,815.26 
(b) Other Current Liabilities 223 20,569.36 25,390.48 
(c) Provisions 2.24 5,123.78 5,245.82 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 225 756.24 2,303.44 

Total Current Liabilities 49,649.76 1,18,218.28 
Total Equity and Liabilities 1,37,328.46 1,92,785.24 

Significant accounting polices & Notes to accounts, T&2 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements 
As per our reported even date annexed 

For and on behalf of the Board 

Place : Hyderabad 
Date : May 17, 2025 DIN: 07178265 



Madhucon Projects Limited 
Standalone Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

(Al the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares" , "Face value of Equity share’ and Earning per share) 
(% in Lakhs) 

Particulars Year ended Year ended 

31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

A|Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit/(loss) before income tax (1.540.11) (2,030.45) 

Adjustments for: 

Exceptional Item - - 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 570.55 611.26 

Dividend and interest income classified as investing cash flows (3,208.64) (185.47) 

Finance costs 221.07 724.02 

Change in operating assets and liabilities 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 3.915.05 (4,034.56) 

(Increase) decrease in inventories 55.09 155.13 

(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets 4,903.08 (8,659.44) 

(Increase)/decrease in other current and non-current assets 5,541.02 3,076.96 

Increase/(decrease) in Loans 4,518.20 2,805.74 

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables (11,498.43) (7,912.24) 

Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities (6,724.29) (2,145.80) 

Increase/(decrease) in other current and non-current liabilities (5,175.96) 4,553.39 

Increase/(decrease) in Non current Investments 3511873 30,550.68 

Cash generated from operations 26,695.36 17,509.22 

Income taxes paid - - 

Net cash inflow from operating activities 26,695.36 17,509.22 

B [Cash flows from investing activities 

Payments for property, plant and equipment 245.52 (282.82) 

Payments for purchase of investments - - 

Dividend paid = = 
Interest received 3,208.64 185.47 

Net cash outflow from investing activities 3,454.16 (97.35) 

c|Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds/(Repayment) of long term borrowings = = 

Proceeds from short term borrowings (net) (29.953.69) (16,608.26) 
Interest paid (221.07) (724.02) 
Net cash outflow from financing activities (30,174.76) (17,332.28) 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (25.25) 79.59 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 553.99 474.41 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 528.75 553.99 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement 

31 March, 2025' 31 March, 2024' 

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: 
Cash and cash equivalents 528.75 553.99 

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of the Year 528.75 553.99 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the standalone financial statements In terms of our report attached 

For and on behalf of the Bo: 

Place : Hyderabad 
Date : May 17, 2025 

ing Directo 

DIN: 07178265 109713108 



ANNEXURE | 
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted 

along - with Annual Audited Financial Results - Standalone 

(xin Lakns) 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 

(Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LOOR) (Amendment) Regulations. 2016]) 
Audited 
(as reported (audited figures after 1 | SNo. Particulars Yebors Sfuoting g for 

for qualifications) qualifications) 

1| Tumover / Total income 8559245 |Not Ascertainable 
2 Total Expenditure 87.132.57 |Not Ascertainable 

3__|Net ProftLoss) (2,104 41) |Not Ascertginable 
4_|Eamings Per Share (2.85)|Not Ascertainable 
5 _[Total Assets 1.37.328.48 |Not Ascertainable 
6 _|Total Liabities 86,983.99 |Not Ascertainable 
7 _|NetWorth 50.344.47 |Not Ascertainable 

& |Any other financial tem(s) (as feil 
|appropriate by the management) - E 

il Audit Quaiification {each audit qualification separately 

3 |Details of Audit Qualification: Separale sheet of repiies enclosed 

b |Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion / Disclaimer-of-Opinion--Adverse-Opinion — 

Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first tims ! repetitive / since how long continuing. 

a For Audit Quaiification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor. Management's Views. 

e |For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: 

i |Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: Not Ascertainable 

i | management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not Ascertainable 

W |Auditors' Comments on (i) or (if) above: Not Ascertainable 

Ua - Lann ae’ 
K. Venkateswarlu {Ch. Lakshmi Kumari) 

Director cum CFO ‘Chairman of Audit Committee 

DIN: 09713108 DIN: 06942473 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Quarterly and Year to Date Audited 

Consolidated Financial Results of the Company Pursuant to the Regulation 33 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015, as amended. 

To 

The Board of Directors 

M/S. MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED IND AS FINANCIAL 

RESULTS 

1. QUALIFIED OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying statement of consolidated financial results (“the 

statement”) of M/S MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED ('the Holding Company') 

and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to 

as, ‘the Group’), for the quarter ended 31st March 2025 and for the period from 1% 

April , 2024 to 315t March,2025, attached herewith, being submitted by the Company 

pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Requirements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other 

auditors on subsidiaries and stepdown subsidiaries of the Group referred to in 

below Paragraph 6 and except for the possible effects of the matters described in 

the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” seclion of our report, the year-to-date 

consolidated financial statement: 

i) Includes the results of the entities listed in Annexure-1, 

ii) Are presented in accordance with the requirements of regulation 33 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 

(“Listing Requirements”) and 

jii) Except for the effects of the matters described in the “Basis for Qualified 

Opinion” section of our report and matters described in other matter paragraph 

in respect of entities audited by other auditors, give a true and fair view in 
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conformity with the Indian Accounting standards and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated loss and total 

comprehensive loss and other financial information of “the Group” for the 

quarter and year ended 31t March,2025. 

2. BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under 

those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 

Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results section of our report. We are 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial results under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements 

and the Code of Ethics. We believe thal the audit evidence oblained by us in 

terms of the report referred to in sub paragraph -A & B of the Basis for Qualified 

opinion and audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their 

reports referred Lo in sub paragraph -a & b of other matter paragraph sections 

below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion 

on the financial results of “the Group”. 

A) In case of the “Holding Company”, matters as reported in the Standalone 

Financials, are reproduced below: 

i, Werefer to the carrying value of Equity Investments of Rs. 1,03,662.52 lakhs held 

in subsidiaries/ other companies and other investments of Rs. 5624.18 lakhs held 

in subsidiaries/other companies, some of these have been incurring losses and 

in case of some of the subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded 

/ Going Concern is affected. We are unable to comment upon the carrying value 

of investments and other investments whether any provision for impairment in 

the value of Equity Investments and other investments is required; the effect of 

same upon the profitability could not be ascertained in the absence of fair 

valuation. 
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a. In the case of Madhucon Infra Limited, a subsidiary, the management basing 

on the valuation Reports on “Investment in Madhucon Infra Limited 

“concluded that the value of this Invesiment is Nil and has written off an 

amount of Rs. 30,550.68 Lakhs in I'Y 2023-24 being 25% of the Investment held 

and during FY 2024-25 the company has further written off Rs.30,550.68 lakhs 

being 25% of Investment held. As of 31st March 2025, the company has written 

off only 50% of the total investment held instead of writing off complete value 

of investment. For the balance 50% of the Investment no provision for 

impairment is made in the books of account as at 31st March, 2025. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of 

such partial write off. 

In the case of Madurai Tulicorin lixpressways Limited, a step-down subsidiary, 

the management basing on the valuation Reports on “Investment in Madurai 

Tuticorin Expressways Limited “concluded that the value of this [nvestment is 

Nil and has wrilten off an amount of Rs. 2,952.05 Lakhs during FY 2024-25 being 

33.33% of the Investment held instead of writing off complete value of 

investment. For the balance 66.66% of the Investment no provision for 

impairment is made in the books of account as at 31st March, 2025. 

In the absence of proper justification, we are not able to ascertain the basis of 

such partial write off. 

“The Company” has defaulted in repayment of dues to Canara Bank and Punjab 

National Bank (PNB) total amounting lo Rs.6,785.99 lakhs as per books of 

account and the same were classified as NPA by the lenders. Interest on these 

loans is not being provided for. With respect to these outstanding dues, OTS 

agreements have been entered wilh the respective banks. However, the OTS 

benefils pertaining lo these banks have nol been recognized, despite full 

settlement payments having been made, due to non-receipt of No Objection 

Certificates (NOCs) from the respective banks. 

During the year, the Company recognized a one-time settlement (OTS) benefit 

totaling Rs. 22,176.41 lakhs in the case of ICICI Bank (Rs. 20,140.15 lakhs) and 

ING Vysya Bank (Rs. 2,036.26 lakhs). 
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“The Company” has Unsecured loan Outstanding payable to Barasat 

Krishnagar Expressways Limited (Subsidiary of Madhucon infra-Limited 

(referred as “MIL")) of Rs. 9,456.74 lakhs. Against which, the company has set 

off the Loan amount receivable from Madhucon Infra Limited (Subsidiary of 

“the Company”) amounting, to Rs. 7,459.50 lakhs and Rs. 1,700.00 lakhs from 

Madhucon Toll 1lighways Limited (Subsidiary of MIL) totaling Lo Rs. 9,159.50 

lakhs during the Quarter ended 31st March, 2025, and shown the Net amount 

Payable to Barasat Krishnagar Expressways Limited as Rs. 297.24 lakhs. 

“The Company “has written back Trade Payables amounting to Rs. 247.05 lakhs 

and Rs. 382.53 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and Year ended 31st 

March, 2025. 

“The Company “has written back Other Payables (including Interest payable) 

amounting to Rs. 12.99 lakhs and Rs. 1,482.71 lakhs [or the quarter ended 31st 

March, 2025 and Year ended 31st March, 2025 respectively. 

“The Company “has writlen off advances Lo Other Parties amounting to Rs. 

346.39 lakhs and Rs. 1705.10 lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and 

Year ended 31st March, 2025 respectively. 

During the quarter ended 31st March 2025 "the Company” has recognized 

interest expense amounting to Rs.32.85 lakhs on account of 

delayed/Outstanding trade payables MSME vendors. However, TDS has not 

been deducted on the said interest amount. 

During the quarter, the management carried out a physical verification of 

certain PPE and decided to scrap assels comprising computers, furniture, and 

temporary erections with a gross block of Rs.5,042.21 lakhs, which were 

disposed of for a total consideration of Rs.0.24 lakhs. [However, physical 

verification of other significant assets, including Plant & Machinery and Tippers 

& Trucks, has not been conducted during the quarter and as such we are unable 

to ascertain the realizable value of the same. 

“The company” is yet to lransfer unpaid dividend of an amount aggregating to 

Rs. 3.73 lakhs relating to Financial Years 2009-10 to 2010-11 from unpaid 

dividend account to Investor Liducation and Protection Fund (IEPF). 



P. MURA” & Co_. Tel. : (91-40) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 

6-3-655/2/3, SOMAJIGUDA, Fax:(9140)23392474 
INDIA  HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA Emai : pmural. co@gmad.com 

x.  Undisputed Statutory dues in case of following are outstanding;: 

5.No Name of the Status Nature of Due Period | Rs. 

| | - | in Lakhs 

1 Thelncome Tax Act,  Dividend Distribution | 2011-12t0 201617 | 139.93 
1961 l'ax & Interest on it 

2 the Employees Provident fund 2013-14 to 2020-21 | 6395 

Provident funds and 

Miscellancous 

provision act 1952 | 

xi.  Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period 1st April 2024 to 31st 

March, 2025. 

xii. In view of losses incurred by “the company” and in the absence of prior 

approval from the lender banks and financial Institutions, managerial 
remuneration of Rs. 128.97 Lakhs paid by the company during the year is in 

excess of the limits specified under section 197 read with schedule V of 
Companies Aet,2013. 

xiii.  “The Company” has not produced Tille Deeds in respect of certain immovable 

properties (lands) held. 

xiv.  In case of “Ranchi Lixpressways Ltd (REL)”, a subsidiary of ML, CBI has filed 
FIR against REL, ils Promoters and Directors on 12-03-2019 under Prevention of 

Corruption Act and Indian Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement 

Directorate has raided the premises of “lhe Company” on 11-06-2021 and the 

Enforcement Direclorate has been filed a charge sheet during December, 2023 

and the next date of hearing is 17-06-2025. 

xv.  As per the press release dated 02-07-2022 and 17-10-2022 The Directorate of 

Enforcement has provisionally attached 105 immovable properties and 28 other 

assets worth Rs.96.21 Crore and Rs.80.65 Crore respectively belonging to 

Madhucon Group of companies, ils direclors and promoters which included the 

properties of Madhucon Projects Limiled and group companies in a case against 

M/s Ranchi Expgessway Ltd, under the provisions of PMLA, 2002. 
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In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a subsidiary of MIL, “The Hon'ble 

National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 22122023 

admitted the Corporale Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed 

by State Bank of India. Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) has made an appeal to 

“The Hon’ble NCLAT” and “The Hon’ble NCLAT” has deferred the impugned 

order given by NCLT and posted the final hearing o 06.06.2025. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs and has 

‘Trade Receivables of Rs. 8,093.58 lakhs in the above subsidiary of MIL for which 

no provision has been made. 

In case of M/s. ‘Irichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited a subsidiary of MIL, 

“The Hon'ble National Company Law Iribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 

22.08.2023 admitted the Corporale Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), against 

which “The Hon’ble NCLA'T has passed an order and directed the COC to defer 

its proceedings till next hearing 1o 26.06.2025. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.10 lakhs and 

advances made of Rs. 42.82 lakhs in the above subsidiary of MIL for which no 

provision has been made. 

In case of Barasat - Krishnagar Expressways Limited a subsidiary of MIL, “The 

Ion'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 

28.11.2023 admilted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process (CRIP), for a 

petition filed by State Bank of India. Barasat - Krishnagar Expressways Limited 

(BKEL) has made an appeal to “The ITon'ble NCLAT” and “The Hon'ble 

NCLAT” has deferred the impugned order given by NCLT and posted the next 

hearing to 24.06.2025. 

Madhucon Projects Limited has made an Investment of Rs.1.40 lakhs in the 

above subsidiary of MIL for which no provision has been made. 

In the absence of confirmation of some of the Trade payables, Trade Receivables 

and various advances/loans, we are unable to comment on the extent to which 

such balances are payable/recoverable. Some of the payables to parties are 

shown by netting off with the other receivables. 

Balance confirmation of current accounts, which have become Dormant, are not 

obtained in case of Bank Branches at various project sites. 
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Matters Relating to Going Concern 

“The Company's” current liabilities exceeded current assets amounting to Rs. 

37,034.83 Lakhs and “The Company” has defaulted in payment of dues to banks. 

All the above events indicate a malterial uncertainty existing that may cast a 

significant doubt on “The Company’s” ability to continue as a going concern. 

However, the management believes the use of going concern assumption on the 

preparation of the financial slalements of “the company” is still appropriate in 

view of settlement of dues lo banks under OTS in case of banks and its 

continuing discussions with its other lenders to obtain approval for an 

appropriate debt resolution plan and also, that “The company” will continue to 

be in operation in the foreseeable future. 

B) In case of subsidiaries, matters as reported in their respective basis for Qualified 

Opinion Para on the financials are reproduced below: 

a) Madhucon Infra limited” 

i Werefer to the carrying value of Equity investments of Rs 8,063.39 lakhs held in 

subsidiaries/other companies and other investments (Unsecured Loans and 

advances) of Rs 34,513.84 lakhs as at 31st March, 2025 given by the company to 

its subsidiaries/other companies, some of these have been incurring losses and 

in case of some of the subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded 

/ Going Concern is affected. We are unable to comment upon the carrying value 

of investments and other investments (Unsecured Loans and advances); 

whether any provision for impairment in the value of investments and other 

investments (Unsecured Loans and advances) is required; the effect of same 

upon the profitability could not be ascertained in the absence of fair valuation. 

ii. Hasmadea provision of Rs. 1,771.47 lakhs and Rs. and Rs. 7,458.86 lakhs for the 

quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and Year ended respectively, towards 

impairment on investment in equity and other investments (Unsecured Loans 

and advances) made in its subsidiaries. In the absence of fair valuation of the 

same, we are unable to comment on the adequacy of the provisions made. 



INDIA 

w. 

Vi 

Vil 

viii. 

P. MURALI & Co., Tel. © (91-40) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 

6-3-655/2/3, SOMAJIGUDA, Fax: (E91{0)2339£474 
o mail - pmurali. co@gmail.com 

HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA info@ i 

Website : www.pmurali.com 

Has Outstanding Unsecured [oan reccivable from Barasat Krishnagar 

Expressways Limited (Herein alter referred as “BKEL") (Step down subsidiary 

of Madhucon Projects Limited) of Rs. 7,459.50 lakhs for which an Impairment 

Provision of Rs. 2,610.83 lakhs were provided till 30th September, 2024. As 

agreed by the Company, Madhucon Projects Limited and Barasat Krishnagar 

Expressways Limited, entire receivable of Rs. 7,459.50 lakhs from BKEL were 

Shifted to Madhucon Projects Limited and Impairment Provision of Rs. 2,610.83 

lakhs which has been made earlier against the said Loan receivable in the boaks 

of accounts has been offered lo other income during the quarter ended 31st 

December, 2024. 

Has written back other Payables amounting, to Rs. 9.07 and Rs.9.09 lakhs for the 

quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and Year ended 31sL March, 2025. 

Has written off advances amounting to Rs. 11.85 and Rs. 11.85 lakhs for the 

quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and Year ended 31st March, 2025. 

Internal Audit has not been conducted for the period {rom 1st April, 2024 to 31st 

March, 2025. 

In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited step down -subsidiary 

of Madhucon Projects Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” 

(NCLT) by an order dated 22.08.2023 admitted the Corporate Insolvency 

resolution process (CIRP), against which “The Hon’ble NCLAT has passed an 

order and directed the COC lo defer ils proceedings till next hearing to 

26.06.2025. 

Madhucon Infra Limited has given an advance of Rs. 5,000.35 lakhs to the above 

subsidiary. Provision for [mpairment of Rs. 125.01 lakhs and Rs. 500.03 Lakhs 

has been made during the quarter ended and Year ended 3lst March, 2025 

respectively. 

In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a step -down subsidiary of Madhucon 

Projects Limited, “Ihe Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by 

an order dated 22.12.2023 admilted the Corporate Insolvency resolution process 

(CIRP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) 
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has made an appeal to “The Hon'ble NCLAT” and “The Hon'ble NCLAT" has 

deferred the impugned order given by NCLT and posted the next hearing to 

06.06.2025. 

Madhucon Infra Limited has given an advance of Rs. 26,668.16 lakhs to the 

above subsidiary. Provision [or Impairment of Rs. 666.70 lakhs and Rs. 2,666.81 

lakhs has been made during Lhe quarter ended and year ended 31st March, 2025 

respectively against the said advance in the books of accounts. 

Madhucon Infra Limited has an Investment of Rs. 1.60 lakhs in the above 

subsidiary. Provision for Impairment on Investments of Rs. 0.04 lakhs and Rs. 

0.16 lakhs have been made during Lhe quarler ended and year ended 31st March, 

2025 respectively. 

In case of Barasat - Krishnagar Expressways Limited a step- down subsidiary of 

Madhucon Projects Limited, “The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal” 

(NCLT) by an order dated 28.11.2023 admilted the Corporale Insolvency 

resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed by Stale Bank of India. Barasat - 

Krishnagar Expressways Limited (BKEL) has made an appeal to “The Hon'ble 

NCLAT” and “The Hon’ble NCLAT” has deferred the impugned order given 

by NCLT and posted the next hearing to 24.06.2025. 

Madhucon Infra Limited has an Investment of Rs. 1.60 lakhs in the above 

subsidiary. Impairment Provision of Rs. 0.04 lakhs and Rs. 0.16 lakhs were made 

against the said Investment in the books of accounts during the quarter ended 

and year ended 31st March, 2025 respectively. 

The Commercial Tax Officer, Circle -1, Nellore issued an VAT penalty 

order/ notice dated 30.04.2021 to Madhucon Infra Limited in the case of contract 

awarded with Simhapuri energy limited in FY 2014-15. Madhucon Infra 

Limited has filed a Writ Petition dated 04.11.2023 at “The Hon'ble High Court 

of Andhra Pradesh”. 

The IFCI Ltd had approved one-time seitlement (OTS) of ils outstanding dues 

of Rs.190.96 Crores vide its letters dated 24th February,2020. In terms of 

settlement, OTS amount of Rs.70 Crores was to be paid by the company in three 

instalments. However, the company made total payment of 155 crores up to 

.
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31st March,2023 and has represented to [FCI to reduce the OTS amount from Rs 

70 Crores to Rs 51 Crores. 

Subsequently, IFCI Ltd had approved full and final settlement of dues of Rs. 51 

crores to be paid within 9 months vide its letter dated 19th June, 2023. As of 31st 

March, 2025 the Company has paid Rs. 4,250.00 lakhs towards settlement of 

these dues. 

Matters Relating to Going Concern 

The company, has accumulated losses and also, current liabilities exceeded 

current assets and the company has defaulted in respect of instalments and 

interest on loans, affecling the company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

However, the management believes the use of going concern assumption on the 

preparation of the financial statements of “the company” is still appropriate as 

company is in discussions with its lenders to obtain approval for and 

implementation of an appropriate debt resolution plan and will continue to be 

in operation in the foreseeable future. 

b) Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited 

Matters Relating Lo Going Concern 

Madhucon Mega Mall Private Limited, which is a subsidiary to “the Holding 

Company”, the accumulated losses have completely eroded the Net worth of 

the company. The Subsidiary have suffered recurring Losses. The accounts of 

the subsidiary have been prepared on the basis of going concern assumption. 

However, the eroded Net worth will significantly affect these subsidiary’s 

ability to continue as a going concern unless it raises capital in order to fund the 

operations. 

¢) Madhucon Heights Private Limited 

In absence of valuation report of capital work in progress, the realizable value 

is not ascertainable. However as per the management representation, the case in 

connection therewith is still pending in the Hon'ble High court of Telangana. 

d) Nama Hotels Private Limited 

In absence of Fair Valuation report of Capilal work in progress, the realizable value 

is not ascertainable. 

) Madhucon Toll Highways Limited 
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i) Werefer to the carrying value of Equily investments of Rs.7,405.71 lakhs held 

in subsidiaries/other companies and other investments (Unsecured Loans and 

advances) of Rs. 2,744.41 lakhs given by the company to its subsidiaries/other 

companies as at 31st March, 2025. Some of these have been incurring losses and 

in case of some of Lhe subsidiaries, net worth was fully or substantially eroded 

/Going Concern is affected. The Company has made provision for impairment 

on the basis of internal evaluation. But, in the absence of fair value, we cannot 

ascertain whether the impairment made is adequate. 

ii) Has made a provision of Rs. 810.44 lakhs and Rs. 2,974.40 lakhs for the 

quarter ended and Year ended 31st March, 2025 respeclively, towards 

impairment on investment in equity and other investments made in its 

subsidiaries. In the absence of fair valuation of the same, we are unable to 

comment on the adequacy of the provisions made. 

iiii) Has made investment written off of Rs. 5,491.66 lakhs during the quarter 

ended 31st March, 2025. Oul of which, Rs. 3,465.00 lakhs perlain to Chhapra 

Hajipur Expressways Limited, Rs. 2,026.66 lakhs pertain to Ranchi Expressways 

Limited. 

iv) Has Outstanding Unsecured Loan receivable from Barasal Krishnagar 

Expressways Limited (Herein after referred as “BKEL") (Slep down Subsidiary 

of Madhucon Projects Limited) of Rs. 1,700.00 lakhs for which an Impairment 

Provision of Rs. 425.00 lakhs were provided till 30th September, 2024. As agreed 

by the Company. Madhucon Projects Limited and Barasat Krishnagar 

Expressways Limited, entire receivable of Rs. 1,700.00 lakhs from BKEL were 

Shifted to Madhucon Projects Limited and Impairment Provision of Rs. 425.00 

Takhs which has been made earlier against the said Loan receivable in the books 

of accounts has been offered Lo other income during the year quarter ended 31st 

December, 2024. 

v) In In case of M/s. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited step-down 

subsidiary of Madhucon Projects Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company 

Law Tribunal” (NCLT) by an order dated 22.08.2023 admitted the Corporate 

Insolvency resolution process (CIRP), against which “The Hon'ble NCLAT has 

passed an order and directed the COC to defer its proceedings till next hearing 

t0 26.06.2025. 



INDIA 

P. MURAU & CO, Tel. : (91-40) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 

6-3-655/2/3, SOMAJIGUDA, Fax: (E914I0) 233%4::@ : 
mail : pmurali. mail.com 

HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA info@pmurali.com 

Website : www.pmurali com 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited held the Equity Investment in Trichy- 

‘Thanjavur Expressways Limited of 1,149.00 lakhs which is the net carrying value 

till 30th September, 2024. During the Quarter ended 31st December 2024, the 

company has made an entire investment write off of Rs. 1,149.00 lakhs. 

vi) In case of Ranchi Expressways Ltd (REL) a step-down subsidiary of 

Madhucon Projects Limited, “The Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal” 

(NCLT) by an order dated 22122023 admilted the Corporate Insolvency 

resolution process (CIRP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. Ranchi 

Expressways Ltd (REL) has made an appeal to “The Hon’ble NCLAT” and “The 

Hon’ble NCLAT” has deferred the impugned order given by NCLT and posted 

the next hearing to 06.06.2025. 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited has given an advance of Rs. 2,895.23 lakhs to 

Ranchi Expressways Ltd, after provision for impairment the net carrying value 

is Rs.2026.66 lakhs as at 31st March, 2025. During the quarter ended 31st March, 

2025, the company has written off entire advance receivable of Rs. 2026.66 lakhs. 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limited held the Equity Investment in Ranchi 

Expressways Limited of Rs. 6,056.25 lakhs which is the net carrying value till 

30th September, 2024. During the Quarter ended 31st December 2024, the 

company has made an entire investment write off of Rs. 6,056.25 lakhs. 

vii)In case of Barasat - Krishnagar Fxpressways Limited a step-down subsidiary 

of Madhucon Projects Limited, “The Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal” 

(NCLT) by an order dated 28.11.2023 admitted the Corporate Insolvency 

resolution process (CRIP), for a petition filed by State Bank of India. Barasat - 

Krishnagar Expressways Limited (BKEL) has made an appeal lo “The Hon'ble 

NCLAT” and “The Hon’ble NCLAT” has deferred the impugned order given 

by NCLT and posted the next hearing to 24.06.2025. 

Madhucon Toll Highways Limiled held the Equity Investment in Barasat 

Krishnagar Expressways Limited of Rs. 3,251.25 lakhs which is the net carrying 

value till 30th September, 2024. During the Quarter ended 31st December 2024, 

the company has made an entire investment write off of Rs. 3,251.25 lakhs. 
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3. MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN OF “THE 

GROuUP” 

“The Group’s” current liabilities exceeded current assets and “The Holding 

Company”, its’ subsidiaries and step-down subsidiaries have defaulted in 

payment of dues to banks and there are adverse observations in the Audit 

Reports of “The Holding Company” and Subsidiaries/ Step-down Subsidiaries. 

All the above events indicate a material uncertainty existing that may cast a 

significant doubt on “The Group's” ability to continue as a going concern. 

However, the management believes the use of going concern assumption on the 

preparation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of “the Group” is 

still appropriate in view of settlement of dues under O1S in case of some banks 

and approval for restructure of loan for settlement of dues by the financial 

institution and its continuing discussions with its other lenders to obtain 

approval for an appropriate debt resolution plan and also, that “The Group” 

will continue to be in operation in the foreseeable future. 

4. MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

These quarterly financial results as well as the year-to-date consolidated 

financial results have been prepared on the basis of the financial statements. 

“The Holding Company’s” Board of Directors are responsible for the 

preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial resulls that give a 

true and fair view of the net profit/ loss and other comprehensive Loss and 

other financial information of “the Group” in accordance with the recognition 

and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, 

‘Interim Financial Reporting’ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with 

relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing 

Regulations. The respective Board of Direclors of the companies included in 

“the Group” are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of “the 

Group” and for_preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
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selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 

effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial results 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of 

the consolidated financial results by the Directors of “the Holding Company”, 

as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated financial results, the respective Board of Directors 

of the companies included in “the Group” are responsible for assessing the 

ability of entities included in “the Group” to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either 

intends to liquidate “the Group” or o cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative but to do so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in “the Group” are 

responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of “the Group”. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

consolidated financial results as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 

these consolidated financial results. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated 
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financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. 

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audil in order to 

design audit procedures (hat are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 

section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion 

on whether “the Group” has adequate internal financial controls system in place 

and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

We have given a qualified opinion on the Internal Financial Controls of “the 

Group”. 

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the 

Board of Directors. 

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors” use of the going 

concern basis of accounling and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 

a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

significant doubt on the ability of “the Group” to continue as a going concern. If 

we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 

in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 

results or, if such disclosures are inadequale, lo modify our opinion. Our 

conclusions are based on the audil evidence oblained up to the date of our 

auditor’s report. Llowever, future events or conditions may cause “the Group” 

to cease to continue as a going concern. 

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated 

financial results, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated 

{inancial results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner 

that achieves fair presentation. 

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 

results/ financial information of the entities within “the Group” to express an 

opinion on the consolidated Financial Results. We are responsible for the 

direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of 

such entities included in the consolidaled (inancial results of which we are the 

independent auditors. l'or the other entities included in the consolidated 

Financial Results, which have been audited by other auditors, such other 
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auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 

the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit 

opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the “Holding 

Company” and such other entity included in the consolidated financial results 

of which we are the independent audilors regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including 

any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. 

We also performed procedures in accordance with the circular issued by the 

SEBI under Regulation 33(8) of the Listing Regulations, as amended, to the 

extent applicable. 

6. OTHER MATTER PARAGRAPH: 

a) We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information of 

one subsidiary and, seven step-down subsidiaries included in the statement, 

whose financial statements together comprise total assets, before elimination, of 

Rs. 2,86,847.17 lakhs as at March 31, 2025, tolal Revenue of Rs. 4,702.40 lakhs and 

Rs. 12,378.57 lakhs and Total Comprehensive loss of Rs. 15,414.46 Lakhs and Rs. 

52,772.61 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31st March, 2025 and for the period from 

1sL April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025 respectively. The financial statements and 

other financial information of these subsidiaries have been audited by other 

auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management, and our 

audit opinion on the consolidated financial results, to the extent they have been 

derived from such financial statement is solely based on the reports of the other 

auditors. 

b) The financial statements and other financial information of PT Madhucon 

Indonesia, a Foreign stepdown subsidiary of the company included in the 

statement, whose financial statements comprise total assets, before elimination, 

of Rs. 8,170.04 Lakhs as at March 31,2025, total Revenue of Nil and Rs.3.42 lakhs 
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and Total Comprehensive loss of Rs. Nil Lakhs and Rs.103.54 Lakhs for the 

quarter ended and year ended 31st March, 2025 respectively .The Financial 

statements / financial information of this company are unaudited and have been 

furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 

financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of this Foreign step down subsidiary, and our report in terms 

of sub-sections (3) and (11) of section 143 of the Act, in so far it relates to the 

aforesaid stepdown subsidiary, is based solely on such unaudited financial 

statements / financial information. 

Qur opinicn on the statement is not modified in respect of the above matters 

with respect Lo our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other 

auditors. 

Regulatory Requirements” in such audit re re reproduced below: 

a) Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Limited ('BKEL') 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

10 us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity the Indian Accounting Standards preseribed undor caction 1 22 of the Act, read 

with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") 

and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 

Company as at March 31, 2025, its loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 

ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (ICAT) together with the independence 
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requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 1 of standalone financial statements, which states that the 

Company is a public limited Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated to execute a road 

infrastructure project under a concession agreement with National Highway Authority of 

India (NHAI), which was terminated by the company on 31st December, 2015. 

2. We draw attention to Note 2.10 of the standalone financial statements, where it has 

been stated that the interest was not provided during the financial year from the day the 

term loans availed by the Company became Non-Performing Assets (NPA). 

3. We draw attention to Note 35 of the standalone financial statements where it has been 

stated that the company is involved in significant litigation against NHAL at various forums, 
and in which case NHALI filed SLP in Hon'ble Supreme Court of India and the matter is still 

pending. 

4. We also draw attention to the following matter - M/s State Bank of India has filed 

petition U/s 7 of IBC 2016, against the Company at the Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench. 
The Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench passed the order by admitting the petition and 

appointed Interim Resolution Professional. In this regard Company has approached the 

Hon'ble NCLAT. The matter is still pending. 

5. We draw attention to Note 37 of the standalone financial statements where it has been 

stated that the Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key Management Personnel and 

Company Secretary, section 177 concerning the audit committee, section 178 concerning 

to nomination and remuneration committee, section 149 concerning in to appointment of 

Independent Director. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters. 
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Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Notes 5 and 15 of the standalone financial statements, which describe 

that the Company has written off significant portion of receivables from NHAI amounting 

to Rs. 14,551.21 Lakhs. Further, the Company’s current liabilities exceed its current assets 

asatthe balance sheet date. As informed by the management of the company, the receivable 

from NHAI will be written off in subsequent years amounting to Rs. 43,653.88 Lakhs as on 

31st March, 2025, based on the developments from time to time. These events or conditions 

indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 

AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at 31st March, 2025, the loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 1 of standalone financial statements, which states that the 

Company is a public limited Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) incorporated to execute a 

road infrastructure project under a concession agreement between the company and 

Bihar State Road Development Corporation Limited (BSRDC), which was terminated 

by BSRDC on 02-03-2016. 

2. We draw attention to Note No. 11 - Other Expenses of the standalone financial 

statements, which highlights that the Company has incurred significant losses during the 

period due to the write-off of financial assets amounting to Rs. 815.40 lakhs. This asset 

constituted the majority of the Company's total balance sheet value. As a result, the 

substantial write-off has led to a significant erosion of net worth, leaving the Company with 

minimal financial resources to sustain its operations. 

3. We draw attention to Note 24 of standalone financial statements which states that the 

company is involved in significant litigation under Arbitration against BSRDC, the outcome 

of which is expected to be unfavourable. 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Notes 4 and 11 of the standalonc financial statements, which describe 

that the Company has written off receivables from BSRDC amounting to Rs. 815.39 lakhs. 

Further, the Company's current liabilities exceed its current assets as at the balance sheet 

date. 

As the Company was incorporated for executing Rajauli-Bakhtiyarpur project which is 

being mutually foreclosed with the contract awardee and this being the only project which 

is abandoned, these events or conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty 

that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter. 

) 4 i Tuticorin E imi MTEL) 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described in the "Basis for Qualified 

Opinion” section of our report, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 

information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
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and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards 

prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally 

accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, the loss, 

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We draw attention to Note no 49 of standalone financial statements, which states that the 

standalone financial statements have been prepared by the management on a basis other 

than going concern, on the grounds of termination of the project, classification of 

borrowings as non-performing assets (NPA), and absence of revenue since such 

termination. However, they have prepared financials on a Going Concern basis, contrary to 

what is mentioned in Note No.49. 

The Company has not provided us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to 

substantiate that the going concern assumption is no longer appropriate. In the absence of 

such evidence and coupled with the adverse features mentioned above, the Company ought 

to have not prepared its Financials as per Going Concern basis. We are unable to quantify 

the impact as such exercise was not carried on by the Company. 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

We draw attention to Note no. 49 of the standalone financial statements, which states that 

the project awarded to M/s Madurai-Tuticorin Expressways Limited has been terminated 

by NHAI on 17-03-2023 though company has commenced Periodic Maintenance works and 

its obligations. These events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists that 

casted significant doubt on the Company's ability Lo continue as a going concern. Based on 



INDIA 

P. MURALI & Co., Tel. : (91-40) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 
6-3-655/2/3, SOMAJIGUDA, g g e e A 

mail : pmurali. com 
HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA ; n“@‘!@ el 

our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's standalone financial statements and 

other relevant information, we have concluded that the entity is not a going concern. Our 

conclusion is based on several factors, including the entity's financial position, cash flows 

from operations, and its ability to meet its obligations as they come due. 

Emphasis of Matter 

5 1 We draw attention to Note 48 of the standalone financial statements, where it has been 

stated that the Company had not pending litigations except arbitration with NHAL Due to 

land issues and CRS clearance delays, the ROB project was extended by 1.5 years, leading 

the concessionaire to file arbitration claims with NHAL As per the High Court order dated 

18/11/2022, the Arbitral Tribunal’s mandate expired on 17/01/2020. NHIAI filed an SLP 

on 01/03/2023, and the Supreme Court reconstituted the tribunal on 31/07/2023. 

Arbitration proceedings have resumed, with cross-examination of witnesses currently 

underway. 

2. We draw attention to Note 2.09 of the Standalone financial statements where it has 

been stated that the loans taken from banks and financial institutions have become NPAs. 

Hence, interest has not been recognized for the year on both long term and short-term 

portions of loans. 

3. We draw attention to Note 52 of the Standalone financial statements where it has been 

stated that since the contract has been terminated in Financial Year 2022-23: 

i 

ii. 

Fixed Assets (other than land) and Intangible Assets have been completely written off; 

Provisions created for Operations and Maintenance have been reversed; 

iii. Capital grant Income has been recognized in full. 

As a result, there is a significant impact on the standalone financial statements and their 

respective ratios. 

4. We draw attention to Note 37 of the standalone financial statements where it has been 

stated that the Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key Management Personnel and 

Company Secretary, section 177 concerning the audit committee, section 178 concerning 

to nomination and remuneration committee, section 149 concerning in to appointment of 

Independent Director. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 
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Adverse Opinion 

In our opinion, based on the significance of the matters described in the Basis for Adverse 

Opinion section of our report, the accompanying standalone financial statements do not 

present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31st 

March 2025, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in 

accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

Basis for Adverse Opinion 

We draw attention to Note 2.2.13 of standalone financial statements, which states that the 

company is not confident enough of discharging its liabilities in the normal course of 

business from the applicable and expected funds, which has a significant impact on going 

concern assumption of the company. However, in our view, the standalone financial 

statements have been prepared using the historical cost basis of accounting as per the 

applicable Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). 

“The Company is a public limited Special Purposc Vchicle (SPV) incorporated to execute a 

road infrastructure project under a concession agreement, which was terminated by NHAI 

on 29-10-2013. Since then, the Company has had no operational activities from the date of 

termination. 

Further, it is involved in significant litigation under Arbitration, the outcome of which 

remains uncertain. 

Despite these adverse conditions, the management has prepared the financial statements 

on historical cost basis of accounting as per the applicable Ind AS, which, in our view, is 

inappropriate, given: 

Termination of the only revenue-generating contract, 

Absence of business operations for an extended period, 

Uncertainty around recovery of dues or continuation of business, 

And the Company’s ongoing legal dispute. 

Had the Company prepared its financial statements using an appropriate alternative basis, 

such as liquidation basis, the values of assets, liabilities, and related disclosures would have 

been materially different. Accordingly, we express an adverse opinion on these Standalone 

financial statements 
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Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

The fact of Cancellation of the company’s project undertaken by NHAI, ongoing legal 

disputes, loan accounts being categorized as non-performing assets and the resultant 

financial distress faced by the company raise serious doubts about the ability of the 

Company to continue as a going concern and reflect significant weaknesses in governance 

and regulatory compliance. 

Given these conditions and the absence of a realistic plan to continue or revive operations, 

we are of the view that the standalone financial statements should have been prepared 

using the liquidation basis of accounting, which would have involved significant changes in 

the measurement and presentation of assets and liabilities. The use of historical cost basis 

in such a context is not appropriate and materially misstates the financial position of the 

Company. 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

e) 1IN (DK) Expressways Limited 

Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given 

to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 

read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind 

AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of 

the Company as at 31st March, 2025, the loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the 

year ended on that date. 
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Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the 

Standards on Auditing specified under scction 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 

responsibilities under those Standards arc further described in the Auditor’s 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 

requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements under 

the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Emphasis of Matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 1 to the Standalone Financial Statements; the company has 

submitted claim to NHAI for the works already completed. The company has initiated 

arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the award was in Favor of the company. The 

company has approached the Hon'ble High Court for execution of arbitration award. NHAI 

contested the award and filed a petition with the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi. 

2. Wedrawattention to Note 41 (c) to the Standalone Financial Statements; the company 

has recognized a contingent liability for the penalty levied by NHAI of Rs. 352.48 Crs for 

delay in carrying out the periodic maintenance obligations in the project stretch. In this 

regard, the company has commenced periodic maintenance works and completed the 

major portion of the periodic maintenance works and its obligations as per the notice given. 

3. We draw attention to Note 2.09 of the standalone financial statements, where it has 

been stated that the Company has not provided interest on term loans from the date 

account became Non-Performing Asset. 

4. Wedraw attention to Note 53 of the standalone financial statements, where it has been 

stated that the Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key Management Personnel and 

Company Secretary, section 177 concerning the audit committee, section 178 concerning 

to nomination and remuneration committee, section 149 concerning in to appointment of 

Independent Director, Section 138 concerning Internal Audit and Section 148 concerning 

maintenance of cogtsacords. 
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5. We draw attention to Note 51 to the Standalone Financial Statements, where it has 

been stated that the company had not obtained any actuarial valuation reports for the year 

under review. 

6. We draw attention to Note 52 to the Standalonc Financial Statements, where it has 

been stated that State Bank of India, which is the Lead Lender approached Hon’ble NCLT 

for initiating Insolvency resolution process against the Company, which is still pending. 

Our Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

f) Trichy-Thanjavur S s Limil 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, except [or the possible effects of the matter described 

in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ section of our report, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 

of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in 

India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, the loss, 

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

M/s IDBI Bank Limited has filed petition U/s 7 of IBC 2016, against the 

Company at the Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench - 1. The Hon'ble NCLT, 

Hyderabad Bench - 1 passed the order by admitting the petition and appointed 

Interim Resolution Professional (RP) and later being handled by RP. In this 

regard Company has approached the Hon'ble NCLAT, Chennai seeking relief 

and the matter is pending. 

The above conditions associated with the outcome of CIRP proceedings indicate 

the existence of material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt on the 

Company's abilities to continue as going concern. 



INDIA 

P. MURA” & CO.. Tel. :(91-40) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 

6-3-655/2/3, SOMAJIGUDA, Fax: (91-40) 2339 2474 
~ Email : pmurali.co@gmail.com 

HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA. info@pmurai. 

‘Website : www.pmurali.com 

However, in view of the above we are unable to obtain sufficient appropriate 

audit evidence to comment on the adjustment, if any, that may be required to be 

made and the consequential impact thereof on the accompanying standalone 

financial statements for the year ended March 2025. In the absence of such 

evidence and coupled with the adverse features mentioned above, the Company 

ought to have not prepared its Financials as per Going Concern basis. We are 

unable to quantify the impact as such exercise was not carried on by the 

Company. 

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance 

with the Standards on Audiling specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our 

audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Actand 

the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 

Ethics. 

Material Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern 

Trichy - Thanjavur Expressways Limited was incorporated under the 

Companies Act, 1956, on 13th April, 2006 as a Special Purpose Vehicle of 

Madhucon Projects Limited for execution of four lanes Trichy - Thanjavur 

Section Road Project on NH-67 in the state of Tamil Nadu on Build, Operate and 

Transfer (BOT) basis. Due to delays in undertaking periodic maintenance works 

NHAI terminated the project on 17-03-2023 through issue of termination notice. 

Based on our audit procedures and evaluation of the entity's standalone 

financial statements and other relevant information, we have concluded that the 

entity is not a going concern. Our conclusion is based on several factors, 

including the entity's financial posilion, cash flows from operations, and its 

ability to meet its obligations as they come due. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

1. We draw attention to Note 1 of the Standalone financial statements, the 

company has submitted claim to NHALI for the works already completed. The 

company has initiated arbitration by invoking arbitral clause and the arbitration 

proceedings commenced. The status of the arbitration is currently in progress. 

2. We draw attention to Note 2.09 of the Standalone financial statements which 

states that the company has laken loans from panks and financial institutions 

have become NPA’s on 30th October, 2018. Hence, interest has not been 

recognized for the year on both long term and short-term portions of loans. The 

balances lying in the Bank current accounts are subject to external confirmation. 

3. We draw attention to Note 7,16 and 17 of standalone financial statements 

which states Lhat the balances are yel Lo be confirmed from third parties. 

4. We draw attention to Nole 52 of standalone financial statements, where it 

has been stated that as the contract has been terminated on 17-03-2023: 

i Fixed Assets (Other than land & motor vehicle) and [ntangible Assets have 

been completely written off in Y 2022-23; 

ii. Provisions crealed for operaling and mainlenance (O&M) expenses have 

been reversed in FY 2022-23; 

jii. Capital grant income has been recognized in full in FY 2022-23. 

As a resull, there is a significant impact on the company’s standalone financial 

statements and its ratios. 

5. We draw attention to Note 51 of standalone financial statements, where it 

has been stated that the Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated 

in section 203 of Companies Act 2013 regarding the appointment of Key 

Management Personnel and appointment of company secretary, as well as 

provisions of 177 and 178 concerning the audit committee and nomination and 

remuneration committee, section 138 concerning internal audit, section 148 

concerning maintenance of cost records, and section 149 concerning in to 

appointment of Independent Director. 
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6. The adequacies of the IND AS adjustments as per applicable IND AS is not 

corroborated and are subject to other IND AS adjustments carried out during 

the year. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the matters mentioned above. 

g Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, except for the possible effects of the matter described 

in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion” section of our report, the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 

conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 

of the Act read wilh the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 

as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting, principles generally accepled in 

India, of the stale of affairs of the Company as al 31st March, 2025, the loss, 

changes in equily and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We draw attention to Note 20 of standalone financial stalements, where it is 

stated that the Company has been incorporated on 2nd day of June 2010 as 

Special Purpose Vehicle for design, build, operate, Finance and Transfer of 4 

laning of Chhapra-Hajipur section of NH-19 from KM 143.200 to Km 207.200 in 

the state of Bihar on annuity basis for a concession period of 15 years (2.5years 

of construction period and 12.5 years of operaling period). 

The above-mentioned conlract was awarded by National Highway Authority of 

India (NHALI). The company shall hand over project to the NHAI on expiry of 

concession period. The Concession Agreement, on execution, will entitle the 

company lo takea fixed sum of annuity every 6 months, in arrears, starting from 

the date of commencement of commercial operations (COD) from NHAL 

However, the company has not commenced (he commercial operations till the 

date of balance sheet. 
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In this scenario, the management must recognize the amount receivable from 

NHAI as per Appendix D - “Service Concession Arrangements” to Ind AS 115 

_ “Revenue from Contracts with Customers". 

As per para 54.1 of Ind AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”, inlerest must be 

calculated using the effective interest method which is to be recognized in 

statement of profit and loss. 

We draw attention to Note 14, 15 & 368 of the standalone financial stalements, 

which describes the accounting treatment of the “Revenue from Operations”. In 

our view, the Company has not complied with the requirements of Appendix D 

to Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracls with Customers, relaling to Service 

Concession Arrangements, in determining, the said amount. 

Had the Company applied the appropriate principles, the measurement, 

recognition and presentation of the revenue recognized might have been 

different. Accordingly, we are unable to determine the impact, if any, on the 

accompanying standalone {inancial statements. 

However, because of the matlers described in the above paragraphs, we were 

unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to quantify il's impact 

on the standalone financial statements. 

We conducted our audil of the Standalone Financial Slatements in accordance 

with Lhe Standards on Audiling specilied under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). 

Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 

the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

(ICAI) logether with the independence requirements thal are relevant to our 

audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 

(the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of 

Ethics. 
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Emphasis of Matter 

1 We draw attention to Note 3612 to the Standalone financial statements, 

where it has been stated that interest is not provided during the financial year 

due to term loans became Non-performing Assets (NPA), however the company 

has provided interest on NHAI Toan. 

2. We draw attention to Note 3621 to the Standalone financial statements, 

Company has failed to adhere to the regulations stated in section 203 of 

Companies Act, 2013 regarding the appointment ol Key Management Personnel 

and appointment of company secretary as well as provisions of 177 and 178 

concerning, the audit commiltee and nomination and remuneration comumittee 

and section 149 concerning in to appointment of Independent Director. 

3. We draw attention to Nole 3623 Lo the Standalone financial statements, 

where it has been stated that the EPC Contractor of the company ie., M/s. 

Madhucon Projects Limited had reversed the EPC bills of Rs. 37 crores on 

account of non-receipt of payment from the Company on 31st December, 2024. 

Since the company is not in a position to release the amount, even GST. 

Accordingly, the Company has reversed the above bills books of accounts in 

January of FY 2024-25. 

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of the above-mentioned matters. 

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, 

except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified 

Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements give 

a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 

accepled in India, on the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025, 

and its Cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

No Internal audit was conducted for the financial year as applicable under 

section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant rules made thereunder. 
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fi. The Company has not complied with the provisions of Indian Accounting 

Standard Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets) 

Claims being Contingent asset in nature. “I'his has resulted in over-statement of 

Current Assets by Rs. 1,00,359 Lakhs and understatement of Cumulative loss by 

the same amount. 

iii. Note 14 to the Financial Stalements which describes the Outstanding balances 

of loans and interests thereon from Banks or {inancial institutions for which no 

Confirmations were received from banks. 

iv. The Company has defaulted on payment of Statutory Dues (PF & Professional 

tax), which was due and pending for more than 6 months. 

v. I'he company has not been complying with Chapter XVII-B of Income tax refated 

to deposit of TDS deducted with the income tax authorities. 

vi. The company had not deposited works contract tax amounts to Rs.20.74 crores 

with the government authority. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 

specified under section H3( 10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities 

under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 

the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 

of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 

celevant to our audit of the financial stalements under the provisions of the 

| Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 

| ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 

Ethics. 

However, because of (he matlers described in the above paragraphs, we were 

1ot able to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis 

for an audit opinion on these financial statements. 
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Empbhasis of matters: 

We draw your attention to the following matters in the Notes to the financial 

statements: 

i) Ranchi Expressways Limited was incorporated under the Companies Act, 

1956, on 29th Day of March 2011 asa Special Purpose Vehicle for Design, Build, 

Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) of Four Laning of Ranchi-Rargaon- 

Jamshedpur Section of NH-33 from Km. 114.000 to Km. 277,500 in the state of 

Jharkhand on DBFOT (Annuity) basis for a concession period of 15 years. This 

contract was awarded by National Highway Authorily of India. The Company 

shall hand over the Project [ighway o NIIAI on expiry of the Concession 

Period. The Rights of Concessionaire as specified in Note- 1 to the financial 

statements has been suspended pursuant to Article 36 of the Concessionaire 

Agreement with NHAL 

i) The company has achieved physical progress of 50.24% and about 10% is in 

WIP and approached NHAI for One Time Fund Infusion (OTFI) for completion 

of the remaining stretch. NHAI initially sanctioned an amount of Rs.223 Crs as 

One Time Fund Infusion and subsequently NHALI has gone back by cancelling 

the already sanction OTFl amount of Rs.223 Crs. Lenders and the company have 

preferred One Time Settlement (OTS) with NHAL for the works already 

completed. 

jiii) While negotiations are going on for OTS proposal, NHAI has terminated the 

Concession Agreement on 30/01/2019 without following the termination 

procedure Jaid down in the Concession Agreement and called for tenders from 

public o complete the balance work on FPC basis. Since the project got 

erminated, Lenders are secking lor One Time Settiement. Company and 

Lenders agreed and requested the NIHAI to refer the matter o Conciliation 

Committee of Independent Engineers. 

iv) The NHAL had given its consent for referring the matter to CCIE vide its 

letter dated 18-04-2019. The company has submitted the claim to NHAL The 

proceedings of CCIE commenced on 25.09-2019. CCIE vide their order dated 

10-08-2020 informed that both parties, despite their attempts at reaching, an 

amicable settlement of their disputes through conciliation before this committee, 

have not been successful. The committee hereby recards the failure and closure 
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of the conciliation proceedings on this matter. The company has initiated an 

arbitration clause the arbitration committee formed, and arbitration proceedings 

commenced. EPC contractor has made claims against the company. On receipt 

of arbitration award the company will negotiate with the EPC Contractor to 

settle the claims. 

v) CBI has filed FIR against the Company, Promoters, Directors and Holding 

Companies on 12/03/2019 under Prevention of Corruption Act and Indian 

Penal Code. Subsequently, the Enforcement Directorate has raided Lhe premises 

of the Company on 11-06-2021 and the ED is collecting information and 

investigation is under progress. 

vi) Banker, the State Bank of India which Disbursed Loans to the Ranchi Express 

Way Ltd has filed a petition under IBC Code, 2016 herewith referred as Financial 

Creditor with the National Company Law ‘[ribunal (1lyderabad Bench-1). The 

Bench is satisfied that the bank has established an existence of financial debt of 

sum exceeding one crore rupees payable by the respondent, the Ranchi 

Expressways Limited. In the process, the honorable bench appointed [RP and 

declared the moratorium under scction 14 of TBC Code on 22nd Dec 2023. 

vii)M/s Stale Bank of India has filed a petition under section 7 of 1BC Code, 2016 

being CP (1B) No. 145 of 2023, before Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench-1. The 

Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench-1 by order dated 22.12.2023 allowed the 

petition filed by State Bank of India and appointed an Interim Resolution 

Professional. Apart from the same, the Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench-1bya 

separate order dated 22.12.2023, dismissed the Application being, 1A (IBC) No. 

1922 of 2023 filed by REL for taking additional documents on record. 

viii) The company challenged both the orders by filing Company Appeal being 

Company Appeal No. 28 of 2024 challenging the acceptance of section 7 IBC 

petition filed by State Bank of India and Company Appeal No. 147 of 2024 

challenging, the dismissal of Application being 1A (1BC) No. 1922 of 2023, before 

Hon'ble NCLAT, Chennai Bench. 

ix) The Hon'ble NCLAT, Chennai Bench in Company Appeal No. 28 of 2024 by 

order dated 29.01.2024, deferred the impugned order dated 22122023 passed 

by Hon'ble NCLT, Hyderabad Bench allowing the Section 7 Petition filed by 



P. MURALI & Co., Tel - (9140) 2332 6666, 2331 2554 
(91-40) 2339 3967, 2332 1470 

gn;ggemrgsos ACCOUNTANTS (91-40) 2332 2119, 2331 7032 

INDIA , SOMAJIGUDA, Fax : (91-40) 2339 2474 

HYDERABAD - 500 082. T.G, INDIA. Emal - prural co@gmail. com info@pmurali com 
Website - www pmurali.com 

State Bank of India, which 1ill date is conlinuing. The pleadings are complete in 

the aforesaid Company Appeal and the same is listed for final hearing on 

06.02.2025. 

x) The Company Appeal No. 147 of 2024 is also listed along with Company 

Appeal No. 28 of 2024, wherein the pleadings are yet not complete. As prayed 

by the learned counsels next hearing, is listed on 06-06-2025. Till the next date of 

hearing interin order granted by the {ribunal shall continue. 

xi) Cost incurred on the project up to 31st March 2025 Rs.1,00,339 Lakhs instead 

of writing-ol1, has been accounted as Claims receivable under the head “Other 

Financial Assets” which is in contravention of the provisions of lndian 

Accounting Standards Ind AS 37 (Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 

Contingent Assets) Claims being Conlingent asset in nature. This has resulted 

in over-statement of Current Assels by Rs. 1,00,359 Lakhs and understatement 

of Cumulative loss by the same amount. 

In view of the above, the termination of the Concession Agreement indicates 

\hat existence of material uncertainty that casts significant doubt about the 

Company's ability to continue as a Going, Concern. 

xii)Interest on Term Loans (rom banks are not provided for during the year and 

such interest amount had been added Lo the claim receivable from NHAL 

xiii) We draw attention to Note-13 to the Financial Statements which indicated 

that the Company has accumulated losses of Rs.54,472 Lakhs and its Net worth 

has been substantially eroded. 

xiv) We draw altention to Note-50 to the financial statements, W fich states that 

the Company has not complied with the requirements ol Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 relating to the composition of the Board of Directors and 

provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding the constitution 

of Audit Committee with independent directors. As disclosed, the Company did 

not have the prescribed number of independent directors on its Board during 

the financial year ended 31st March 2025. 

Qur Opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 
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7. The statement includes the results for the quarter ended 31st March, 2025 being the 

balancing figures between the audited figures for the full financial year and the unaudited 

published year to date figures up to 31st December, 2024 which were subjected to the 

limited review by us. 

For P. Murali& Co, 

Chartered Accountants, 

FRN No: 007257S 

174 

A Krishna Rao 

Partner 

M.No0:020085 

UDIN: 25020085BMILEI5721 

Place: Hyderabad 

Date: 17.05.2025
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Annexure-1 to Auditors Report: 

Subsidiaries 

1) Madhucon Infra Limited [Which includes its Subsidiaries (i to ix ), 

mentioned below] 

2) Madurai | uticorin Expressways Limited (audited by other auditors) 

3) Madhucon Mega mall Pyt Ld 

4) Nama Hotels Pvt Ltd 

5) Madhucon Heights Pvt Ltd 

Subsidiaries of Madhucon Infra limited 

i Madhucon Toll Highways L.td 

i, Barasat-Krishnagar Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

iii. Rajauli-Bakthiyapur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

iv. Vijayawada-Machilipatnam Limited (audited by others) 

v. TN (DK) Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

vi. Trichy-Thanjavur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

vii. Chhapra-Hajipur Expressways Limited (audited by others) 

viii.  Ranchi Expressways Ltd (audited by others) 

ix. PTMadhucon Indonesia (unaudited) 



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 
CIN-L74210TG1990PLCO11114 

Regd. Office:1-7-70, Jublipura, Khammam - 507003, Telangana 
STATEMENT OF CONSOLIDATED AUDITED FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE QUARTER AND YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025 

(Zin Lakhs) 
Consolidated 

sl. Quarter ended Year ended 
No Parliculars 31032025 | 31122024 | 31032024 | 31.032025 | 31.03.2024 

Audited Unaudited Avdited Audited Audited 
PART-I 

I | Revenue from Operations 1387800 | 1114362 | 4209457 [  67.656.13 | 1,16375.27 
I | Otherincome 3,708.10 6,676.51 23,666.90 33,467.96 30,140.46 
Il | Total Income (1+1) 17,586.10 17,820.13 65,761.47 | 1,01,124.09 | 1,46,515.73 
IV | Expenses: 

(a) Cost of Materials Consumed 10,333.89 13,530.75 32,382.16 53,594.54 94,955.68 

(b) Changes in Inventory of Finished goods,Work-in- 

Progress and stock-in-trade ) N ) ) J 
(c) Employee benefits expense 45312 451.24 508.70 1,812.86 2,279.01 

(d) Financial Costs 2701.82 487.52 2,668.56 3,884.20 4,142.37 

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,590.46 48,351.79 154.25 53111.73 3,181.01 

(f) Other expenses 6723.54 (27677)| 31.339.77 | 40.48074 |  49.043.43 
Total Expenses 22,802.83 62,544.53 67,053.44 | 1,52,884.07 | 1,53,601.50 

V.| Profit/(Loss) Before Exceptional ltems and tax (Ill-IV) (5216.73)|  (44,724.40) (1,291.97)|  (51,759.98) (7.085.77) 

VI | Exceptional Items 2 ® ", ; ® 
Provision for Impairment on Investments ® = = 2 = 
Share of (Loss) from Associate Company - - = - 

VIl | Profit/(Loss) Before Tax (3-4) (5.216.73)| (44,724.40)] (1,291.97)| (51.759.98)]  (7,085.77) 
Vil | Tax Expense 

a) Current Tax " - - " 
b) Adjustments relating to earlier yeors (4.62) 462 129 (7.36) 

<) Deferred Tox 933.16 (11301) (598.08) 56430 (1,003.51) 
Total Tax (a+b) 928.54 (108.39) (596.79) 56430 [ (1,010.87) 

IX | Profit/(Loss) from Continuing operations (VII-VIIl) (6.145.27)| (44,616.01) (695.18)|  (52,324.28)| (6,074.90). 

X | Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations - - - - 
X | Tax Expense of discontinued operations = * = 

X | Profit/(Loss) from discontinued operations after tax (X-XI) - - = - 

Xl | Profit/Loss for the period (IX+XIl) (6,145.27)]  (44,616.01) (695.18)[ (52.324.28)|  (6,074.90) 
Attributable to: 

- Share Holders of the Parent Company (3887.25)|  (42.227.37) 47563 | (47.520.50)|  (4511.66) 
- Non Controlling Interest (225802)  (2.38844)|  (1.17081)|  (480378)|  (1.563.24) 

XV | Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 
A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss = 

(i)Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans| 787 = 47.35 7.87 47.35 

Amount Not Reclassifiable to P&L = = = o 

Share of Ofher Comprehensive income fransferred fo . R . . ‘ 
Non Controlling inferest 

(i) Income tax relating to these items L £ : 3 i 
B) (i) ltems that will be reclassified to profit or loss = - & 3 . 

(ii) Incometax relating to these items - - § & o 

Share of Profit /(Loss) transferred fo Non Controlling . . i - . 
Interest 

Total Other Comprehensive income,net of tax 7.87 - 47.35 7.87 47.35 
Attributable to: 

- Share Holders of the Parent Company 7.87 - 47.35 787 47.35 

- Non Controlling Interest o = < - 
XV | Total Comprehensive Income (XIlI+XIV) (3.879.38)(  (42,227.37) 52298 (47,512.63) (4,464.31) 

Attributable fo: 

- Share Holders of the Parent Company (3879.38)|  (42.227.37) 52298 | (47.512.63)|  (4.46431) 
- Non Controlling Interest (2,258.02) (2,388.64) (1.170.81) (4,803.78) (1.563.24) 

XVI | Paid - up Equity Share Capital (Face value of Rs.1/-) 737.95 73795 737.95 737.95 73795 
Xvil | Toal Reserves i.e Other equity = - “ v 

xvil Earning per share (of Rs.1/- each) (not annualised) (for = 
discontinued and continuing operations) E 3 

- Basic and Diluted (5.27) (57.22) 064 (64.40) (611) 

\ 

\V 4



Notes: 

1 The above results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee at its meeting held on May 17th, 2025 and approved by the 

Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 17th, 2025. The Statutory Auditors have submitted Audit Report 

on the Audited Financial Results for Quarter and Year ended March 31st, 2025. 
2 The Company's operations primarily consists of construction-project activities and there are no other reportable segments 

under Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments". 

3 The Consolidated Audited Financial Results of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with relevant rules issued thereunder (“Ind 

AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and un terms of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation 

and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

The figures for the Quarter ended March 31st, 2025 and March 31st, 2024 are the balancing figures between the Audited 

figures in respect of the full Financial Year and Unaudited published figures upto the Third Quarter for the respective years. 

4 Figures of previous period have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary. 

By Order of the Board 

For Madhucon Projects Limited 

K. Venkateswarlu 

Director cum CFO 
DIN: 09713108 

Place: Hyderabad 
Date : May 17, 2025 

- Managing Director 
DIN: 07178265 



MADHUCON PROJECTS LIMITED 

Consolidated Balance Sheet As at March 31, 2025 
(All the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares" , “Face value of Equity share” and Earning per share) 

(%in Lakhs) 
Note As at As at 
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 21 4,134.52 4,917.98 
(i) Capital Work-in-Progress 2.1 8,708.53 8,708.53 

Intangible Assets 2.1a 8,311.62 11,956.39 
(ii) Intangible Assets under Development E - 
(iii Investment Properties - - 

(b) Financial Assets 
(i) Investments 22 54.58 54.58 
(ii/Trade Receivables 23 - - 
(ili Loans 24 5,605.74 10,123.94 
(iv) Others Financial Assets 25 1,33,003.98 1,34,125.63 

(c) (Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 26 5,015.26 5,579.56 
(d) Other Non-Current Assets 27 20,425.10 17,435.88 

Total Non-Current Assets 1,85,250.33 1,92,902.49 
Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 28 180.01 208.88 
(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments, 29 - - 
(ii) Trade Receivables 2.10 542,48 3,571.61 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 211 5,085.96 3,909.16 
(iv) Bank Balances other than above 212 643.56 - 
(v) Loans 213 - 10.16 
(vi) Others Financial Assets 2.14 1,49,118.42 1,96,414.50 

(c) Current Tax Asset Net) 2.15 2,392.33 6,164.24 
(d) Other Current Assets 2.16 17,082.44 18,071.61 

Total Current Assets 1,75,945.20 2,28,350.16 
Total Assets 3,61,204.53 4,21,252.66 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 217 740.32 740.32 
(b) Other Equity (1,47,543.52) (1,51,012.64) 
Less : Profit / (Loss) from Associates - - 

Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Company (1,46,803.20) (1,50,272.32) 
(c) Non-Controlling Interests (53,712.27) (48,514.82) 

Total Equity (2,00,515.47) (1,98,787.14) 
Liabilities 
Non-Current Liabilities 

() Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 2.19 1,45,582.24 1,57,530.47 
(i) Trade Payables 2.20 22,108.64 8,092.84 
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

andsmall enterprises; and 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other 

than microenterprises and small enterprises.] 
(iij)Other Financial Liabilities 221 3,678.49 2,024.52 

(b) Provisions 222 18,467.52 14,644.30 
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - - 
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 223 15,096.03 13,903.68 

Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,04,932.92 1,96,195.81 
Current Liabilities 

() Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 224 2,09,855.40 2,23,806.54 

(ii) Trade Payables 2.25 11,368.46 36,884.43 
(A) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

andsmall enterprises; and 
(B) total outstanding dues of creditors other 

than microenterprises and small enterprises.| 
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 2.26 24,227.09 47,361.62 

(b) Other Current Liabilities 2.27 68,165.73 69,854.30 
() Provisions, 228 42,411.78 43,595.41 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 2.29 758.62 2,341.70 

Total Current Liabilities 3,56,787.08 4,03,844.00 
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,61,204.53 4,21,252.66 
Significant accounting polices & Notes (o accounts 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
As per our reported even date annexed 

Place : Hyderabad 
Date : May 17, 2025 

Joint Managing Directc 
DIN-07178265  DIf-09713108 



Madhucon Projects Limited 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended March 31, 2025 

(All the amounts are in lakhs except "No of Shares" , "Face value of Equity share” and Earning per share) 

(xin Lakhs) 
Year ended Year ended 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 
A |Cash flow from operating activities 

(Loss) / Profit before tax (51,759.97) (7,085.77) 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 53,111.73 3,181.01 
Dividend Income 
Interest Income (3,208.64) (223.07) 
Receivables / Advances Written Off - 3 
Exceptional Items - - 
Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss - - 
Finance costs 3,494.82 3,901.37 

53,397.91 6,859.31 
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,637.94 (226.46) 
Change in Working Capital 

(Increase)/decrease in Trade Receivables 3,029.13 (3,064.42) 
(Increase)/decrease in Inventories 28.88 163.94 
(Increase)/decrease in Other Financial Assets 48,417.73 (20,571.91) 
(Increase)/decrease in Other Current and Non-Current Assets 1,771.85 16,540.10 
Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings (net) (13,951.13) 68,275.88 
Increase/(decrease) in Trade Payables (11,500.16) (7,974.30) 
Increase/(decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities (21,480.58) (79,334.41) 

Increase/(decrease] in Other Current and Non-Current Liabilities 520.83 1,213.93 
Cash generated from operations 8,474.49 (24,977.64) 

Income taxes paid - - 

Net cash from operating activities 8,474.49 (24,977.64) 

B |Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including CWIP (48,683.49) (344.83) 
Change in other equity 50,635.43 46,827.68 

Changes in Investments . - - 
(Increase) / decrease in other bank balances (643.56), 5 

Dividend Received - (0.01) 
Interest Received 3,208.64 223.07 

Net cash used in investing activities 4,517.01 46,705.92 
C [Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds/ (Repayment) of long term borrowings (11,948.24) (12,646.79) 
Increase/(decrease) in Loans 4,528.36 (9,509.06) 

Dividend paid E = 
Interest paid (3.494.82) (3.901.36) 

Net cash used in financing activities (10,914.70) (26,057.21) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,076.80 (4,328.94) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 3,909.16 8,238.12 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 5,985.96 3,909.18 

31 March, 2025 31 March, 2024' 

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: 
Cash and cash equivalents 5,085.96 T 

Cash and Cash Equivalents end of the Year 5,985.96 3,909.16 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements 
In terms of our report attached 

Ar and on behalf of the Boare 

K. Venkateswarlu 
Director cum CFO 

DIN-09713108 

Place : Hyderabad & Joint Managing Direct 
Date : May 17, 2025 DIN-07178265 



ANNEXURE I 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted 
along - with Annual Audited Financial Results - Consolidation 

(X In Lakhs)| 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 

(Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016]) 

Audited Figures Adjusted Figures 
(as reported (audited figures after 

ABELRDy before adjusting adjusting for 
for qualifications) qualifications) 

» z 9 

 Turnover / Total income 1,01,124.08 | Not Ascertainabie 

Total Expenditure 1.52,884.07 |Not Ascertainable 

Net Profit/(Loss) (52,324.28) |Not Asceitainable 

Eamings Per Share (64.40)|Not Ascertainable 

 Total Assets 3,61,204.53 | Not Ascertainable 

Total Liabilities 5,61,720.00 |Not Ascertainable 

Net Worth (2,00,515.47) [Not Ascertainable 
Any other financial item(s) (as felt 
appropriate by the management) 

Qualification (each audit qualification separately 

Details of Audit Qualification: Separale sheel of repiies enclosed 

Type of Audit Qualification : Qualified Opinion /-Disclaimer-of Opinion / Adverse Opinion 

Frequency of qualification: Whether appeared first time / repelitive /-since-how-long-continuing 

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views: 

For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: 

- 
n
n
n
u
»
S
m
fl
m
m
h
u
N
—
A
 

Managemenl's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: Not Ascertainable 

i |If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not Ascertainable 

iii_|Auditors" Comments on (i) or (i) above: Not Ascertainable 

Signatories: 

For Madhucon Projects Limited 
' 

Lyt " 
Sh K. Venkateswarlu (Ch. Lakshmi Kumari) 

Jt M Director cum CFO Chairman of Audit Committee 

DIN: 09713108 DIN: 06942473 

Membership No. 020085 
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